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Audit Findings for The Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and The Chief Constable of Cumbria Constabulary
for the year ended 31 March 2024

This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting process and
confirmation of auditor independence, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK]) 260. Its contents have been discussed with management.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK]), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the
financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify control
weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal
control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written
consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

We encourage you to read our transparency report which sets out how the firm complies with the requirements of the Audit Firm Governance Code and the steps we have taken to drive
audit quality by reference to the Audit Quality Framework. The report includes information on the firm’s processes and practices for quality control, for ensuring independence and
objectivity, for partner remuneration, our governance, our international network arrangements and our core values, amongst other things. This report is available at transparency-report-
2023.pdf [grantthornton.co.uk).

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
Michael Green

Director
For Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants
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significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the
financial reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK)

260. Its contents have been discussed with management, the PFCC and Chief
Constable as those charged with governance, and the Joint Audit Committee.

Name: Michael Green
For Grant Thornton UK LLP
Date: 26 February 2025
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The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention, which
we believe need to be reported to you as part of
our audit planning process. Itis not
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters,
which may be subject to change, and in particular
we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting
all of the risks which may affect the PFCC and
Chief Constable or all weaknesses in your internal
controls. This report has been prepared solely for
your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We do
not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining
from acting on the basis of the content of this
report, as this report was not prepared for, nor
intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square,
London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available
from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm
of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and
the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL
and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one
another’s acts or omissions.
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1. Headlines

This table
summarises the key
findings and other
matters arising
from the statutory
audit of The Police,
Fire and Crime
Commissioner for
Cumbria (‘the
PFCC’) and The
Chief Constable for
Cumbria
Constabulary and
the preparation of
the PFCC’s and
Chief Constable's
financial
statements for the
year ended 31
March 2024 for
those charged with
governance.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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Financial Statements

Under International Standards of Audit
(UK] (1SAs) and the National Audit
Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice
('the Code'), we are required to report
whether, in our opinion the financial
statements:

* give a true and fair view of the
financial positions of the PFCC
and Chief Constable’s income and
expenditure for the
year; and

* have been properly prepared in
accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on
local authority accounting and
prepared in accordance with the
Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.

We are also required to report whether
other information published together
with each set of audited financial
statements (including the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) and
Narrative Report is materially
inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated

Our audit work was completed remotely during July-September. Our findings are summarised on pages 7 to 20. We
have identified one adjustment to the financial statements of the Chief Constable that has resulted in a £4.2m
adjustment to the Chief Constable Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and one adjustment to the
financial statements of the PFCC that has resulted in a £4.2m additional earmarked reserve. Audit adjustments are
detailed in Appendix D.

We have also raised recommendations for management as a result of our audit work. These are set out in Appendix B.
Our follow up of recommendations from the prior year’'s audit are detailed in Appendix C.

Our work is complete and our audit opinion for the PFCC’s financial statements (including the financial statements
which consolidate the financial activities of the Chief Constable] and the Chief Constable’s financial statements can
be found in Appendices | and J.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements, is consistent with our
knowledge of your organisations and the financial statements we have audited.

Our financial statements audit report opinions are unmodified and were issued on 26 February 2025. Our work on the
PFCC’s and Chief Constable’s value for money (VFM) arrangements is complete. The outcome of our VFM work is
reported in our commentary on the PFCC’s and Chief Constable’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual Report
(AAR).
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Value for Money (VFM) arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice (‘the
Code'], we are required to consider whether in our opinion, both
entities have put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Auditors are now
required to report in more detail on the overall arrangements, as
well as key recommendations on any significant weaknesses in
arrangements identified during the audit.

Auditors are required to report their commentary on the
arrangements under the following specified criteria:

- Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness;
- Financial sustainability; and

- Governance

We have completed our VFM work and have issued our Auditor’s Annual Report on 26 February 2025. A letter
explaining the reasons for the delay in completing this work beyond 30 September 2024 is attached in Appendix H to
this report.

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the PFCC and Chief
Constable’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We identified no
risks at the planning stage and will continue to review this as we finalise our VM work.

Our work on the PFCC and Chief Constable’s value for money (VFM) arrangements has been reported in our
commentary on the PFCC and Chief Constable’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR).

Statutory duties

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also requires
us to:

* report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers
and duties ascribed to us under the Act; and

* to certify the closure of the audit.

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.

We are unable to certify the completion of the audit as we are awaiting final confirmation from the National Audit
Office in relation to the Whole of Government Accounts. We will update management on developments in this area
once confirmed.

Significant matters

We did not encounter any significant difficulties or identify any significant matters arising during our audit. There
continues to be a good level of engagement from the finance team, which greatly assists with the delivery of an
efficient and effective year end audit process. Without the delay in receipt of assurances from the auditor of the Local
Government Pension Scheme we would expect to have been able to issue the audit opinion ahead of the 30 September
deadline.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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1. Headlines

National context - audit backlog

Nationally there have been significant delays in the completion of audit work and the issuing of audit opinions across the local government sector. Only 12% of local government bodies had
received audit opinions in time to publish their 2021/22 accounts by the extended deadline of 30 November. There has not been a significant improvement over this last year, and the
situation remains challenging. We at Grant Thornton have a strong desire and a firm commitment to complete as many audits as soon as possible and to address the backlog of unsigned
opinions. By the end of May 2024. Grant Thornton had signed 65% of our 2022/23 audits. This compared with 7% for other firms. We are on course to sign 80% before the local authority
backstop is introduced for 2022/23. We have also made good progress with our 2023/2% audits and are pleased to present this report to you on a timely basis.

On 30 July 2024, the Minister of State for Local Government and English Devolution issued a statement which outlined the plans to lay secondary legislation to amend the Accounts and
Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2015 to set a series of backstop dates for local authority audits. These Regulations will include a publication date for audited financial statements for
2023/24 by 28 February 2025. The National Audit Office Code also requires that auditors should issue their audit report in time for the relevant authority to publish its accounts by the
specified date in those Regulations. Where audit work is not concluded, this will result in either a qualification or disclaimer of opinion.

We would like to thank everyone at the PFCC and Chief Constable for their support in working with us to given the national context.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit Audit approach

This Joint Audit Findings Report presents the observations
arising from the audits that are significant to the
responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee
the financial reporting process, as required by International
Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with
management and the Joint Audit Committee.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
and the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged
with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the PFCC and Chief Constable’s business
and is risk based, and in particular included:

*  Anevaluation of the PFCC's and Chief Constable's
internal controls environment, including their IT systems
and controls;

* An evaluation of materiality considering the PFCC and
Chief Constable's gross revenue expenditure;

* Substantive testing on significant transactions and
material account balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

We have not had to alter our Audit Plan, as communicated
to you in June 2024.

Commercial in confidence

We have completed our audit of your financial statements
and have issued an unqualified audit opinion on the
financial statements of both the PFCC and the Chief
Constable.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our
appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance
team and other staff. As in previous years, the financial
statements were of a high standard and supported by clear
and comprehensive working papers.
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2. Financial Statements

Chief Constable
Group (£) PFCC (£) (£) Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial 4,087,000 3,415,000 3,685,000 Financial performance, focussing on the expenditure.
o statements
Our approach to materiality
The concept of materiality is Performance materiality 3,066,000 2,561,000 2,688,000 Quality of working papers in prior year and client’s
fundamental to the preparation of the response to audit processes.
financial statements and the audit
process and applies not only to the Trivial matters 204,000 171,000 179,000 The amount below which matters would be considered
monetary misstatements but also to trivial to the reader of the accounts.
disclosure requirements and adherence
to acceptable accounting practice and Materiality for senior officer 39,000 39,000 39,000 Materiality has been reduced for remuneration
applicable law. remuneration disclosures due to the sensitive nature and public
interest.

Materiality levels remain the same as
reported in our audit plan in June 2024.

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross expenditure of the group, the PFCC and the
Chief Constable for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark. For our audit testing purposes we apply the
lowest of these materialities, which is £3.416m (PY £3.268m), which equates to 2% of the PFCC’s (PY: CC’s) prior year gross
expenditure for the year.

We set out in this table our
determination of materiality for the
PFCC, Chief Constable and group.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 8
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2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the
potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Joint Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Relates to Commentary
ISA (UK) 240: Presumed risk of fraud in revenue recognition PFCC/ As set out in our Audit Plan, we do not consider this to be a significant risk for the PFCC and Chief
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue 8h'ef / Constable.
may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue. This Gonstoble Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams of the PFCC
presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no roup and the Chief Constable, we determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be
risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue rebutted, because:
recognition. * there s little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
Having cf013|dered the risk fGth:chhse;Eétén lSCAj [:\JK]CZ:Ofocr;d thebl » for the PFCC opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited as revenue is
nature o t, € revenue strf—:‘oms ot the P an the Chie onstc.l. & principally grant allocations from central and local government
we determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition ] o ) . o
could be rebutted. » for the Chief Constable opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited as revenue
is principally an intergroup transfer from the PFCC, with no cash transactions; and
* the culture and ethical frameworks of public sector bodies, including the Chief Constable and
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as
unacceptable
Whilst revenue and expenditure recognition was not identified as a significant risk, we have carried out
procedures and detailed testing of material revenue streams to gain assurance over this area.
We tested, on a sample basis, material revenue transactions, ensuring that it remained appropriate to
rebut the presumed risk of revenue and expenditure recognition. We did not identify instances of
fraudulent revenue recognition or any reason to change our assessment of the risk in this area.
Risk of fraud related to expenditure recognition - Practice Note 10 PFCC / Our Audit Plan confirmed that we consider that we are able to rebut the significant risk in relation to
In line with the Public Audit Forum Practice Note 10, in the public Chief expenditure as we concluded that there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to
sector, auditors must also consider the risk that material 8onstob|e /' expenditure recognition.
roup

misstatements due to fraudulent financial reporting may arise from
the manipulation of expenditure recognition (for instance by deferring
expenditure to a later period). As most public bodies are net spending
bodies, then the risk of material misstatement due to fraud related to
expenditure recognition may in some cases be greater than the risk of
material misstatements due to fraud related to revenue recognition.

Having considered the nature of the expenditure streams of each of
the Chief Constable, PFCC and Group, we have determined that
there is no significant risk of material misstatement arising from
improper expenditure recognition

As with revenue transactions, we have performed procedures to understand and test material
expenditure streams. Our work in this area has not identified any matters to report to you or that would
lead to a change in our risk assessment.

© U2 Grant Thornton UK LLF.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Relatesto Commentary

Management override of controls PFCC/ We have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non- gh'eft ble / * made enquiries of finance staff regarding their knowledge of potential instances of management override of controls;
. : onstable

rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of Group * evaluated the design effectiveness of managements controls over journals;

management over-ride of controls is
present in all entities. The PFCC and Chief
Constable face external scrutiny of its
spending and this could potentially place
management under undue pressure in
terms of how they report performance.

We therefore identified management
override of control, in particular journals,
management estimates and transactions
outside the course of business as a
significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material
misstatements.

* analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals and those falling into certain
criteria determined by the audit team;

* tested a sample of journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration;

* gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied made by management and considered
their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and

* evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

In performing the procedures above, we identified a population of journals to test using data analytic software to analyse journal
entries and to split large batch journals into smaller sets of transactions that support targeted testing based on specific risk criteria
assessed by the audit team. These criteria included:

* Post year-end journals

*  Material journals across the year

* Year-end journals

* Year-end expenditure accrual journals

* Journals posted by senior management

» Off ledger adjustments

Application of these routines and supplementary procedures identified a total sample of 26 journals to test.

As part of our review of journal procedures we continue to note that only journal lines over £60k are approved by senior
management, journal lines which are less than £50k, are not approved. Our sample testing of journals, including those where
journal lines were less than £50k did not identify any matters for concern with all journal lines appropriate and reasonable.
Furthermore, due to recent promotion. the Group Accountant has the ability to self-approve journal lines over £60k. While the
Group Accountant is aware not to do this, there are no formal controls in place to prevent this from happening. We have included a
recommendation around this in Appendix B.

Our journals testing is complete and our work did not identify any evidence of management over-ride of controls.

We did not identify any changes in accounting policies or estimation processes and review of key estimates has not identified any
matters to bring to your attention.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Relatesto = Commentary
Valuation of land and buildings PFCC/ We have:
The PFCC and Group revalue their land Chief * evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation
and buildings on a rolling two-yearly basis. C(c;nstoble experts and the scope of their work;
roup

This valuation represents a significant
estimate by management in the financial
statements due to the size of the numbers
involved, £63.8m as at 31 March 2024 and
the sensitivity of this estimate to changes
in key assumptions.

Management will need to ensure the
carrying value in the PFCC and Group
financial statements is not materially
different from the current value or the fair
value (for surplus assets) at the financial
statements date, where a rolling
programme is used.

We therefore identified valuation of land
and buildings, particularly revaluations

and impairments, as a significant risk of
material misstatement.

* evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;

* written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out to ensure that the requirements of the Code
are met;

* challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess the completeness and consistency with our
understanding;

+ evaluated the valuer’s report to identify assets that have large and unusual changes and/or approaches to the valuation -
these assets have been substantively tested to ensure the valuations are reasonable;

* tested a selection of other asset revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the PFCC and
Group asset register, revaluation reserve and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; and

* evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how management had
satisfied themselves that these are not materially different from current value at year end.

Our work is complete and has not identified any issues requiring adjustments in respect of this significant risk.

Our review of the calculations performed by the valuer showed that the valuations had been based on realistic and sound
assumptions supported by appropriate evidence including floor and site plans, building rate costs and rationale for various
obsolescence factors applied.

Through our work agreeing the floor areas of the Constabulary HO to supporting evidence, we noted that the gross internal area
(GIA) of the Stable Block had decreased significantly since the previous valuation in 2021/22. We challenged the external valuer on
this who confirmed that the GIA used in the 2021/22 valuation was incorrect. The error has been corrected in year in 2023/24
following the revaluation of the Constabulary HO at 31 March 2024. It is appropriate for the error to have been corrected in the
year. This means that the value of land and buildings as at 31 March 2024 is not materially misstated.

We did not note any other variances in our agreement of floor and site areas to supporting evidence. As a result, we have gained
assurance that the error is isolated.

During the year, seven property assets had been re-categorised from ‘Operational - Non-specialised’ to ‘Operational -
specialised’, meaning that the valuation method to be adopted had changed from existing use value (EUV) to depreciated
replacement cost (DRC). We challenged the valuer on this who explained that assets had been re-categorised owing to a lack of
sufficient comparable evidence for assets to be valued on an EUV basis. We are satisfied that this is not a change in estimate but a
change in judgement on the available comparable information. Through work performed, we are satisfied that this re-
categorisation is appropriate.

Based on our audit work completed we are satisfied that the value of Property, Plant and Equipment is not materially misstated
within the financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Relates to

Commentary

Valuation of pension fund net liability/surplus PFCC / Chief
The Group’s pension fund net liability, as reflected in its balance Constable /
sheet as the net defined benefit liability, represents significant ~ Group
estimate in the financial statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant
estimate due to the size of the numbers involved (£1.066 billion
as at 31 March 2023 for the group) and the sensitivity of the
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Group’s pension fund
net liability as a significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

We have:

* updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure
that the group’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluated the design of
the associated controls;

 evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management experts (Mercer and GAD)
for this estimate and the scope of the actuaries’” work;

* assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the group’s
pension fund valuation;

* assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the group to the actuaries
to estimate the liability;

* tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core
financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary; and

* undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by
reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performed any additional
procedures suggested within the report;

We requested assurances from the auditor of Cumbria Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding the
validity and accuracy of membership data; contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by
the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements. We have now
received these assurances from the pension fund auditor. The pension fund auditor did highlight some
variances in their work which impacted on the Group’s share of the pension fund, however, as a result of
the asset ceiling under IFRIC 14, these variances did not impact on the Group’s balance sheet.

Page 14 provides a detailed assessment of the estimation process for the valuation of the pension fund
net liability. The assumptions used in calculating the net pension liability/surplus of both schemes are
considered to be in line with expectations and we have not identified any further issues with the
estimation process.

Based on work completed, we have not identified any matters to bring to your attention.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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2. Financial Statements: new issues and

risks

This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit that were not previously communicated in the Audit Plan and a summary of any

significant deficiencies identified during the year.

Issue Commentary

Auditor view

In accounting for the grant within the draft financial
statements, the revenue has been recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
and a provision for £4.2m has been created in the
Balance Sheet to reflect a future liability to match
fund the costs incurred by other forces during 2024-
25.

We have considered the accounting treatment
applied in this area as part of our audit procedures.

Data Improvement grant accounting
treatment

Cumbria police received notification
from the Home Office in May 2024 that
a grant of £4.2m had been awarded in
respect of 2023-24 to reflect the costs
incurred in delivery of the Records
Management System and Data
Management capabilities during the
year.

The grant award letter included a
restriction that Cumbria Police would
match fund activity in this area across
other forces as part of their role as
lead force for national policing DDaT
capabilities.

In consideration of Code guidance on accounting for grant revenue we concur with
management’s view that the grant award does not include conditions that must be satisfied
and that it is therefore appropriate to recognise the income in full during 2023-24.

In considering financial reporting standard and Code guidance we do not believe that the
criteria for recognition of a liability by way of a provision has been met.

As the grant award does not specify a condition that would mean the funding should be
returned if Cumbria Police did not match fund expenditure incurred elsewhere, there is no
constructive obligation at the year-end. Whilst it may be the intention of Cumbria Police to
match fund costs incurred by other forces (subject to receipt of appropriate claims), there is
no compulsion to do so which would create a relevant obligation to recognise.

It is our view that the provision should be reversed on this basis. This would increase the
reported surplus of the Chief Constable and Group. Management have agreed to adjust for
this item and to create an earmarked reserve to reflect a commitment to fund relevant spend
submitted from other forces. Whilst overall general fund and earmarked reserves increase as a
result of the adjustment, the available unearmarked general funds available to the Chief
Constable and group are not affected.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Assessment

Light purple

Significant
judgement Relates
or estimate to Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments
Land and PFCC/ Land and buildings comprise £61.3m of specialised assets ~ The PFCC’s accounting policy on valuation of land and buildings is included in
Building Group such as police stations, which are required to be valued Note 9 to the financial statements.
valuations - at dep.recioted replacement cost [DRC] at year end, Key observations
£63.775m reflecting the cost of a modern equivalent asset
necessary to deliver the same service provision. The The values in the valuation report have been used to inform the measurement of
remainder of other land and buildings (£2.4m) are not property assets at valuation in the financial statements. We have:
specialised in nature and are required to be valued at - assessed the qualifications, skills and experience of the Valuer and
existing use in value (EUV) at year end. determined the service to be appropriate;
The PFCC has engaged Carigiet Cowen to complete the « reviewed the underlying information prepared by the PFCC and supplied to
valuation of properties as at 31/03/2024 on a two-yearly the Valuer and considered it to be complete and accurate; and
. . 0 .
ggglslingO&S. 8% of total assets were revalued during + concluded that the Valuer prepared their valuations in accordance with the
) RICS Valuation - Global Standards using the information that was available to
Management have considered the year end value of non- them at the valuation date in deriving their estimates.
valued properties, and the potential valuation change in Our review of the calculations performed by the valuer, demonstrated that the
the assets last revalued at 31/03/2023. Management has : L .
. calculations had been based on realistic and sound assumptions supported by
taken steps to respond to our 2022/23 audit . . . .
. ) appropriate evidence at the time the work was completed as outlined on page 11.
recommendation regarding assets not revalued and has
for 2023/24% undertaken a more detailed review of land Our work identified that seven property assets had been re-categorised from
and building assets not revalued during 2023/24 as part ‘Operational - non-specialised’ to ‘Operational - specialised’. This means that the
its arrangements for preparing the financial statements. valuation method adopted for these assets is depreciated replacement cost
This assessment has not identified a material movement (DRC). We challenged the valuer on this matter who explained that these seven
since the last valuation date of 31/03/2023. Based on assets had been re-categorised owing to a lack of sufficient comparable evidence
review, we are satisfied that the potential valuation for assets to be valued on an existing use value (EUV) basis. As explained on page
movement since the previous valuation date and 31/03/24 11, we have confirmed that this is not a change in estimate but is more a change in
is not material. judgement based on the available comparable information.
The total year end valuation of land and buildings was Conclusion
£63.8m, a net decrease of £2.6m from 2022/23 (£66.3m). Based on our audit work performed, we are satisfied that the estimate of your
land and buildings valuation is not materially misstated.
Assessment

® [Dark Purple] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

[ ] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Light Purple] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement
or estimate

Summary of
management’s approach

Assessment

Audit Comments

LGPS Net pension
liability — £0.733m

IFRIC 14 addresses the
extent to which an IAS 19
surplus can be recognised
on the balance sheet and
whether any additional
liabilities are required in
respect of onerous funding
commitments.

IFRIC 14 limits the
measurement of the defined
benefit asset to the 'present
value of economic benefits
available in the form of
refunds from the plan or
reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

The PFCC and Chief
Constable’s Local
Government Pension Scheme
net pension surplus at 31
March 2024 is nil (PY nil) for
the funded benefits scheme
and £0.733m (PY £0.781m) for
the unfunded benefits,
comprising the Cumbria
Local Government Pension
Scheme obligations.

The PFCC and Chief
Constable uses Mercers to
provide actuarial valuations
of the PFCC's and Chief
Constable’s assets and
liabilities derived from this
scheme. A full actuarial
valuation is required every
three years.

The latest full actuarial
valuation was completed in
2023. Small changes in
assumptions can result in
significant valuation
movements in the net pension
liability/surplus. There has
been a £7.312m net actuarial
gain during 2023/24.

We have:
* Assessed management’s expert

* Assessed the actuary’s approach taken, detail work undertaken to confirm
reasonableness of approach

We have no concerns over the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary by the
Authority.

We have used the work of PWC, as auditor’s expert, to assess the actuary and assumptions
made by the actuary - see below considerations of key assumptions in your pension fund
valuation:

Police Pension Scheme Actuary
Assumptions Value PwC range Assessment

Discount rate 4.90% 4.90%
CPl inflation 2.60% 2.60% -2.70%
Light purple
Pension increase rate 2.60% 2.60% - 2.70%
Salary growth 4+10% 3.10% -5.10%
Life expectancy - Males 22.4-23.0
currently aged 45/65 2l 20.8-21.5
Life expectancy - Females 22.4-25.2
arraridy aged Y5/EE ey 20.823.6

The assumption adopted for mortality is within range for all except the current and future
female pensioners which is outside the range used by the actuary that PwC concluded is
reasonable. As per the PWC conclusion, the actuary proposed to use SAPS tables and has
then adjusted the SAPS tables via scaling factors to reflect each Fund’s own mortality
experience reviewed for the 2023 triennial funding valuation.

We therefore compared the range in the triennial valuation to the range reported as used by
Mercer for most employers in the PWC report. We are satisfied that the range used is within
the range reported.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement

or estimate Relates to Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments

Police Pension Scheme  Chief The Chief Constable’s Police Pension We have:

liability - £1.079m Constable / Scheme liability at 31 March 2024 is - Assessed management’s expert
Group £1.079m (PY £1.065m). The Chief

Constable operates three pension
schemes for police officers, these are the
1987,2006 and 2015 Police Pension
Schemes.

The Chief Constable uses GAD to provide
actuarial valuations of their Police Pension
Scheme liabilities. A full actuarial
valuation is required every four years.

The last full actuarial valuation was
completed in 2022. A roll forward
approach is used in intervening periods,
which utilises key assumptions such as life
expectancy, discount rates, salary growth
and investments returns.

Given the significant value of the net
pension fund liability, small changes in
assumptions can result in significant
valuation movements. There has been a
£9.89m net actuarial gain during 2023/24.

* Assessed the actuary’s approach taken, detail work undertaken to confirm
reasonableness of approach

We have no concerns over the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
actuary by the Authority.

We have used the work of PWC, as auditor’s expert, to assess the actuary and
assumptions made by the actuary - see below considerations of key
assumptions in your pension fund valuation:

Police Pension

Scheme

Actuary

Assumptions Value PwC range Assessment
Discount rate 4.75% 4.75%
CPl inflation 2.60% 2.60%
Pension increase rate 2.60% 2.60%
Salary growth 3.85% 3.10% -5.10%
Life expectancy - Males 22.9-23.6
currently aged 45/65 26210 21.3-21.9
Life expectancy -
22.9-25.1
Females currently aged  25.1/23.6 213036

45/65

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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2. Financial Statements: Information
Technology

This section provides an overview of results from our assessment of Information Technology (IT) environment and controls which included identifying risks from the use of IT related to business
process controls relevant to the financial audit. This includes an overall IT General Control (ITGC) rating per IT system and details of the ratings assigned to individual control areas.

ITGC control area rating

Technology acquisition,
Level of assessment Security development and Technology Related significant
IT application performed Overall ITGC rating management maintenance infrastructure risks/other risks

ITGC assessment
(design and

Oracle . . N/A
implementation
effectiveness only)
Active - .
Directory Limited testing N/A
Assessment

@ Significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements
Non-significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements/significant deficiencies identified but with sufficient mitigation of relevant risk
IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements judged to be effective at the level of testing in scope

® Notin scope for testing

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 17
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2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with

governance.

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation to
fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Joint Audit Committee. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period and no other issues
have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

Matters in relation to
related parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

Matters in relation to laws
and regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not identified any incidences from
our audit work.

Written representations

Letters of representation have been requested from both the PFCC and the Chief Constable.

Confirmation requests
from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to confirm cash and investments. This permission was granted and the requests were
sent. All of these requests were returned with positive confirmations.

Accounting practices

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the PFCC’s and Chief Constable's accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures.
Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.

Audit evidence
and explanations/
significant difficulties

All information and explanations requested from management were provided.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

Issue

Commentary

Going concern

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are required to “obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the appropriateness of
management's use of the going
concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and to conclude
whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern” (IS4

(UK) 570).

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice - Practice
Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The Financial
Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing standards are
applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of financial statements in
that sector. Practice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:

* the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and
resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for
accounting will apply where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a
material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and standardised
approach for the consideration of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities

* for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more
likely to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Our
consideration of the PFCC's and Chief Constable's financial sustainability is addressed by our value for money
work, which is covered elsewhere in this report.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of
accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the
continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting framework adopted by the
PFCC and Chief Constable meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service approach. In
doing so, we have considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the PFCC and Chief Constable and the environment in which they operate
* the PFCC's and Chief Constable's financial reporting framework

* the PFCC's and Chief Constable's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going
concern

* management’s going concern assessment.
On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
* o material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified for either the PFCC or the Chief Constable

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of both sets of financial statements
is appropriate.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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2. Financial Statements:
other responsibilities under the Code

Issue

Commentary

Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements including the Annual Governance
Statements and Narrative Reports, are materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Our work on Other Information is complete. No inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect - refer to Appendix H
and Appendix I.

Matters on which we report
by exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a number of areas:

* if the Annual Governance Statements does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is misleading or inconsistent with
the information of which we are aware from our audit,

» if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties.
+ where we are not satisfied in respect of arrangements to secure value for money and have reported [a] significant weakness/es.

We have nothing to report on these matters.

Specified procedures for
Whole of Government
Accounts

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack under WGA audit
instructions. However, in the case of the PFCC and Chief Constable, no work is required as the group does not exceed the group reporting threshold of £2 billion
as determined by the NAO.

Certification of the closure
of the audit

We are unable to certify the completion of the audit as we are awaiting final confirmation from the National Audit Office in relation to the Whole of Government
Accounts. We will update management on developments in this area once confirmed.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM)

Approach to Value for Money work for N
2023/24 {o% I

The National Audit Office issued its guidance for auditors

in April 2020. The Code require auditors to consider Improving economy, efficiency Financial Sustainability Governance
whether the body has put in place proper arrangements and effectiveness . X
Y putinp proper gem Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that the
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use . . . : . .
Arrangements for improving the body can continue to deliver body makes appropriate decisions
of resources. ; : : : . - : ; hog
way the body delivers its services. services. This includes planning in the right way. This includes
When reporting on these arrangements, the Code requires This includes arrangements for resources to ensure adequate arrangements for budget setting
auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements understanding costs and delivering finances and maintain sustainable and management, risk
under the three specified reporting criteria. efficiencies and improving levels of spending over the medium management, and ensuring the
outcomes for service users. term (3-5 gears) body makes decisions based on

appropriate information

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on the body’s arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, which are as follows:

Statutory recommendation
éIé Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act

2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses in arrangements to
secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the
body. We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

Improvement recommendation
These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the body, but are not

made as a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the body’s arrangements

We have completed all of our VFM work and are in a position to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report. We issued our Auditor’s Annual Report on 26 February 2025. This is in line with the National
Audit Office's revised deadline, which requires the Auditor's Annual Report to be issued no more than three months after the date of the opinion on the financial statements.

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the PFCC and Chief Constable's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources. We did not identify any such risks or findings that would impact the audit opinion on the accounts.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 21



5. Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and consider that an objective
reasonable and informed third party would take the same view. We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered
person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person,
confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements
for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are in Appendix E.

Transparency

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well as the results of internal and
external quality inspections. For more details see Grant Thornton International Transparency report 2023.

Audit and non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the PFCC and Chief Constable. No non-audit services were identified.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 22
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5. Independence and ethics

As part of our assessment of our independence we note the following matters:

Matter

Conclusion

Relationships with Grant Thornton

We are not aware of any relationships between Grant Thornton and the Group that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
integrity, independence and objectivity.

Relationships and Investments held by individuals

We have not identified any potential issues in respect of personal relationships with the Group or investments in the Group held
by individuals.

Employment of Grant Thornton staff

We are not aware of any former Grant Thornton partners or staff being employed, or holding discussions in respect of
employment, by the Group as a director or in a senior management role covering financial, accounting or control related areas.

Business relationships

We have not identified any business relationships between Grant Thornton and the Group.

Contingent fees in relation to non-audit services

No contingent fee arrangements are in place for non-audit services provided.

Gifts and hospitality

We have not identified any gifts or hospitality provided to, or received from, a member of the Group’s board, senior
management or staff.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and consider that an objective
reasonable and informed third party would take the same view. The firm and each covered person [and network firms] have complied with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard
and confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Following this consideration we can confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. In making the above judgement, we have also
been mindful of the quantum of non-audit fees compared to audit fees disclosed in the financial statements and estimated for the current year.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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Appendices

Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Follow up of prior year recommendations

Audit Adjustments

Fees and non-audit services

Draft Management Letter of Representation - PFCC

Draft Management Letter of Representation — Chief Constable

Draft Audit opinion - PECC
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Draft Audit opinion - Chief Constable

=

Audit letter in respect of delayed VEM work
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Appendices
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A.Communication of audit matters to those

charged with governance

Joint
Audit
Plan Findings

Our communication plan

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged with
governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing and expected
general content of communications including significant risks

Confirmation of independence and objectivity

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence. Relationships and other matters which might be thought to bear on
independence. Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and
network firms, together with fees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to
independence

Matters in relation to the group audit, including:

Scope of work on components, involvement of group auditors in component audits,
concerns over quality of component auditors' work, limitations of scope on the group
audit, fraud or suspected fraud.

Views about the qualitative aspects of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and
financial statement disclosures

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written representations that
have been sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or which results in
material misstatement of the financial statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK], prescribe matters which we are required
to communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in
the table here.

This document, the Audit Findings, outlines those key issues, findings and other
matters arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in
writing rather than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have
been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with
ISAs (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on
the financial statements that have been prepared by management with
the oversight of those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals
charged with governance, we are also required to distribute our findings to those
members of senior management with significant operational and strategic
responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration and onward
distribution of our report to all those charged with governance.
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B. Action Plan- Audit of Financial Statements

We have identified 2 recommendations for the PFCC and Chief Constable as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our
recommendations with management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2024/25 audit. The matters reported here are
limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you

in accordance with auditing standards.

Issue and risk

Assessment

Recommendations

Journals

Due to recent promotion, the Group
Accountant has the ability to self-approve
journal lines over £50k. While the Group
Accountant is aware not to do this, there
are no formal controls in place to prevent
this from happening.

Management should implement formal controls to either prevent Group Accountant from self-authorising journal lines over £60k or to ensure
these journals are reviewed by the CFO.

Management response

All other members of the Financial Services Team (in approval group 1) have the ability to approve their own journals providing there are no
individual journal lines that exceed £50,000. For journals with lines over £60,000, there is a workflow within Oracle Fusion which routes these
journals to one of the 3 individuals that can approve larger journals (approval group 2), these 3 approvers are Lorraine Holme Group
Accountant, Steven Tickner PFCC CFO and myself. Steven does not have permissions to input journals and as such does not present a

risk. Whilst | do have GL access so in theory | could post a journal, | do not do any journals so this is not an issue. Lorraine however is required
to do journals as part of her work on statutory accounts and in relation to capital accounting. As part of the higher approval group, Lorraine
is not able to approve her own journals under £60k, but could, in theory, approve journals over £60k but is aware that she should not do

this. Having said this, there were no instances where Lorraine approved her own journals, she simply asks one of the others (in the appropriate
approval group) to approve the journal for her.

There are two potential solutions to this action point, firstly we could remove the journal input permission from Lorraine, this is not ideal as she
would instead have to prepare the journals and ask someone else (@ more junior member of the team) to input it for her. This to me provides a
greater risk.

My preferred solution would be to ensure that Lorraine continues not to approve her own journals and at the end of each month a report is
prepared showing all Lorraine’s journals and who has authorised each. These reports will be signed off by ST or myself and will be retained as

part of the audit file.

Michelle Bellis, Constabulary CFO

Valuation of land and buildings - Gross
Internal Area (GIA)

Through our work agreeing the floor areas
of the Constabulary HQ to supporting
evidence, we noted that the GIA of the
Stable Block had decreased significantly
since the previous valuation in 2021/22. We
challenged the external valuer on this who
confirmed that the GIA used in the 2021/22
valuation was incorrect. The error has been
corrected in year in 2023/24 following the
revaluation of the Constabulary HO at 31
March 2024.

Management should ensure that floor areas used in valuations are correct to ensure that buildings are correctly valued.
Management response

A review of the estates information system commenced in July 2024; this will set out a recommendation for replacement. As part of this the
asset drawing database will be reviewed and updated accordingly. This will improve accuracy of the database and the information provided
to the valuer.

In addition, work is underway on the securing an asset information post to the estates team whose duties would include the management of
the asset drawing database.

As part of the valuer’s appointment, they are required to take check measurements by physically surveying the building. This is set out in the
client terms of appointment and specification provided to the valuer. These measurements are compared against the drawing database and

any anomalies highlighted to the estates team so the measurements can be checked, and the records updated.

Phil Robinson - Head of Estates

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Controls

@® High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium
Low - Best practice

- Limited Effect on financial statements X
6



Commercial in confidence

C. Follow up of prior year recommendations

We identified the following issues in the audit of the PFCC and Chief Constable's 2022/23 financial statements, which resulted in four recommendations being reported in our 2022/23 Audit
Findings report. We are pleased to report that management have implemented all of our recommendations.

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue

Assets not revalued . . o Management revised the letter of instructions to the valuer which now clearly sets
Mohogement had not undt?rtoken a detailed review of.lond on.d buﬂf:hng assets not revalued 4 the expectation for the valuation exercise and desktop review of out of scope
during 2022/23 as part of its arrangements for preparing the financial statements to ensure assets.

4 they remained materially stated. . . . .
We recommended that as part of the process for preparing the financial statements, During th? valuation process .the OPFC(;’ Head of Estates (Phil Roblnson]., the
management should undertake a detailed review of assets which have not been revalued to Valuer (Mike Be‘?'es]’ CFO [M|ch.e||e Bellls]. and Group Accountant (Lorraine
ensure that they remain materially stated. Holme) met to discuss the valuations and implications.
IFRIC14 Pensions
From discussions with actuarial firms as part of the 2022/23 audit, it was understood that the In relation to LGPS, the situation arose again and an asset ceiling was applied in
application of IFRICI4 was not within their normal scope of work. As such, unless they are respect of the ‘funded benefits'. All information was provided to the scheme

v instructed otherwise by the employer, they will produce 1AS19 disclosures assuming there are  actuary to enable the calculations to be made and disclosure notes provided.
no IFRIC14 adjustments to any surplus or deficit. This means there is a risk that material
adjustments are not factored into the IAS1? disclosures. We recommended that management
instruct their actuary to calculate any potential asset ceiling under IFRIC14 where pension
schemes are in surplus to ensure they are reflected in their IAS19 calculations.
Reserve movements
There had been no adjustment for the difference between fair value depreciation and As part of the 2023/24 year-end closedown process, the difference in the fair
historical cost depreciation between: value depreciation and historic cost depreciation was revisited .

v - Revoluotign reserve The difference between the fair value and historic cost depreciated was
- The capital adjustment account calculated as part of the year end process and found to be £333k, the required

accounting entries were included for this and the adjustment between the CAA

We recommended that there should ensure that the difference between fair value and RR can be seen in notes 20a and 20b to the SoA.
depreciation and historic cost depreciation is adjusted for.
Related Parties
Review of the arrangements to support the related party disclosures within note 21 of the Management confirmed that an additional level of quality assurance was
2022/23 accounts identified some discrepancies between the working papers provided and  implemented within the financial services team to ensure that disclosures made
the individual related party declarations. on individual forms are correctly recorded on the working papers provided to the

v We identified the need to ensure that declarations made are accurately reflected in the audit team.
related party disclosure note. An additional step has been added to the 2023/24 process which will see o

second team member check that all the data has been entered correctly into the
We recommended the need to ensure that declarations made are accurately reflected in the summary of responses spreadsheet.
related party disclosure note.
Assessment
v Action completed
© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP. X Not yet addressed 27



D. Audit Adjustments- PFCC/Group

We are required to report Impact of adjusted misstatements

Commercial in confidence

- - Comprehensive
all non trivial misstatements to those .
. There are no adjustments to report. Income and Statement of
charged with governance, whether or not . . . ors s
the accounts have been adjusted by Expenditure Financial Position £ Impact on total net Impact on reserves
Detail Statement £°000 000 expenditure £°000 £°000
management.
PFCC
Additional earmarked reserve in respect of DdaT
funding due to be paid over to other forces on
submission of claims for relevant expenditure.
4,200
General fund
Earmarked reserve (+200)
Group (adjustment in CC page 30)
Reversal of provision in respect of DdaT funding
due to be paid over to other forces on submission
of claims for relevant expenditure.
. (4,200) (4,200) (4,200)
Net cost of services
Provisions 4,200
Overall impact (+,200) 4,200 (+,200] (+,200)
Misclassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of
financial statements.
Disclosure/issue/Omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
Typographical changes Accounts to be updated. v
A small number of typographical and
consistency changes were made to the
statements.
Pension disclosures Accounts not required to be updated given immaterial changes. X
© 2025 Grant Thornton UKLLP. Following the LGPS IAS 19 re-run, there were 8

a small number of disclosure changes.




Commercial in confidence

D. Audit Adjustments - PFCC/Group

Impact of unadjusted misstatements
There are no unadjusted misstatements to report.

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements

;

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the prior year audit which had not been made within the final set of 2022/23
financial statements. We have considered these misstatements alongside the misstatements identified above and are satisfied that the prior period
impact is immaterial to the financial statements, meaning a prior period adjustment is not required. We are satisfied that these issues are not carried
forward to the closing balances at 31 March 2024.

Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement of Financial Reason for

Detail Statement £°000 Position £’ 000 not adjusting
Difference between fair value depreciation and Nil Not material
historical cost depreciation
There had been no adjustment for the difference
between fair value depreciation and historical
cost depreciation between the:

. 467
- revaluation reserve
- the capital adjustment account. (457)

—

Overall impact Nil Nil
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We are required to report

all non trivial misstatements to those
charged with governance, whether or not
the accounts have been adjusted by
management.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year
ending 31 March 2024.

Comprehensive Income Statement of

and Expenditure Financial Position £2 Impact ontotal net Impact on reserves
Detail Statement £°000 000 expenditure £°000 £°000
Reversal of provision in respect of DdaT ~ Net cost of services (4,200) Provisions 4,200 (4,200) (4,200)
funding due to be paid over to other
forces on submission of claims for
relevant expenditure.
An additional earmarked reserve has
been created in PFCC/group accounts
in relation to this adjustment.
Overall impact (+,200) 4,200 (+,200) (+,200)

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of
financial statements.

Disclosure/issue/Omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?

Pension disclosures - PPS Accounts to be updated. v
We noted the key financial assumptions

disclosed for the PPS in 23/24 draft accounts

do not agree to the GAD actuarial report.

These include assumptions on inflation, increase

in salaries, pensions, rate of revaluation for

CARE and discounting.

Following the LGPS IAS 19 re-run, there were a  Accounts not required to be updated given immaterial changes. X
small number of disclosure changes.

Typographical changes Accounts to be updated. v

A small number of typographical and
consistency changes were made to the

statements.
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Impact of unadjusted misstatements

There are no unadjusted misstatements to report.

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the prior year audit which had not been made within the final set of 2022/23
financial statements. We have considered these misstatements alongside the misstatements identified above and are satisfied that the prior period
impact is immaterial to the financial statements and addressed through the 2023-24 IAS 19 entries, meaning a prior period adjustment is not required.
We are satisfied that these issues are not carried forward to the closing balances at 31 March 2024.

Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

Detail Statement £°000

Reason for
not adjusting

Statement of Financial
Position £’ 000

Pensions — actuarial 1AS 19 asset valuations 861

The PFCC and CC were informed by Cumbria Pension
Fund after the financial statements had been prepared
that the figures provided for Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) asset values in the actuary
report had been incorrect The overall impact would be
on the actuarial gain/loss on the pension asset/liability
going through the Group Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and a compensating
adjustment to the Police Pensions reserve in the
Statement of Financial Position.

861 Not material

Overall impact £861

£861
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E. Fees and non-audit services

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non-audit services. There have bene no proposed changes to the fee as
communicated in our Audit Plan in April 2024.

Audit fees PFCC Chief Constable Total
Scale fee £88,661 £48,413 £137,074
ISA 315 £4,079 £2,196 £6,275
Additional IT related procedures for Oracle ledger (including use of FastPath software) £3,500 £1,500 £5,000
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £96,240 £562,109 £148,349

The fees do not reconcile to the financial statements. We have provided a reconciliation below:
+ fees per financial statements £152k
+ reconciling item (over accrual] (£Lk)

* total fees per above £148k

None of the above services were provided on a contingent fee basis.

This covers all services provided by us and our network to the group, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected parties that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our integrity, objectivity or independence. (The FRC Ethical Standard (ES 1.69))

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 32
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[LETTER TO BE WRITTEN ON CLIENT HEADED PAFPER]

Mr Michael Green
Director

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Landmark, St Peter's Square,
1 Ciford Street

Manchester M1 4PB

[Date] —{TO BE DATED SAME DATE AS DATE OF AUDIT OPINION]

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

This representafion letter is provided in connection with the awdit of the financial statements of The
Palice, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria (the ‘Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner’) and its
subsidiary undertaking, the Chief Constable of Cumbria Constabulary for the year ended 31 March 2024
for the purpese of expressing an opinion as to whether the group and Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner financial staiements give a frue and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2023/24 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inguiries as we considered
necessary for the purpese of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the group and Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner's financial statements in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting
Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Praclice on Local Autherity Accounting in the:
United Kingdom 202324 {"the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairy presented
in accordance therewith.

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the group and
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and these matters have been appropriately reflected and
disclosed in the financial statements.

il The Paolice, Fire and Crime Commissicner has complied with all aspects of contractual
agreements that could have a material effect on the group and Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner financial statements in the event of nen-compliance. There has been no non-
compliance with requirements of any regulatory autherties that could have a material effect on
the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

v We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

V. Significant assumpfions used by us in making accounfing estimates, including those measured
at fair value, are reaszonable. Such accounting estimates include the valuation of the net
pension liability and the valuafion of land and buildings. \We are satisfied that the material
judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in
accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We
understand our responsibilities includes identifying and considering alternative, methods,
assumpficns or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework,
and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used. We are safisfied that
the methods, the data and the significant azsumptions used by us in making accounting

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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estimates and their related disclosures are appropriaie fo achieve recognitien, measurement or
disclosure that is reascnable in accordance with the Cede and adequately disclosed in the
financial statements.

We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuanal assumptions underlying the valuation of
pension scheme assets and liabilities for lA519 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent
with our knowledge. We confirm that all setflements and curtailments have been identified and
properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have
been identified and properly accounted for.

Except as disclosed in the group and Pelice, Fire and Crime Commissioner financial
statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent

b. nene of the asseis of the group and Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner has been
assigned, pledged or morigaged

c. therz are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring
items requiring separate disclosure.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards
and the Code.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International
Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been
adjusted or disclosed.

We have considered the adjusted misstaternents, and misclassification and disclosures
changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The group and Police, Fire and
Crime Commissioner financial statements have been amended for these misstatements,
misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including
omissions.

We have considered the unadjusied misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings
Report and attached schedule. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these
misstatements brought to our attention as they are immaterial to the resulis of the Group and its
financial position at the year-end. The financial statements are free of materal misstatements,
including omissions.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue fo believe that the group and
Pelice, Fire and Crime Commissioner's financial statements should be prepared on a going
concern basis and have not identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on the
grounds that :

a. the nature of the group and Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner means that,
netwithstanding any infention to cease the group and Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it
performs can be expected fo confinue to be delivered by related public authorifies and
preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful
representation of the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial statements
on the basis of the presumption set out under a) abowve; and

. the group and Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's system of internal control has
net identified any events or conditions relevant to geing concem.
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Ve believe that no further disclosures relating to the group and Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial
statements

We have considered whether accounting transacfions have complied with the requirements of
the Local Government Housing Act 1989 in respect of the Housing Revenus Account ring-
fence.

The group and Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner has complied with all aspects of ring-
fenced grants that could have a material effect on the group and Pelice, Fire and Crime
Commissioner's financial statements in the event of nen-compliance.

Information Provided

v

vl

paiil

il

Ve have provided you with:

a. access fo all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the group and Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's financial statements such as
records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have reguesied from us for the purpose of your audit;
and

c. access to persons within the Palice, Fire and Crime Commissioner via remaote
arangements, frem whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

WWe have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is
aware.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

Ve have disclosed to you the resulis of cur assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

Ve have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the group and Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner, and involves:
4.  management;

b.  employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

WWe have disclesed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

WWe have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effecis should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the group and Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's
related parfies and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

WWe have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

et

WWe are satisfied that the Annual Govemnance Statement (AG3) fairly reflects the Police, Fire
and Crime Commissioner's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we
are mot aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AG5.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Marrative Report

¥V The disclesures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the group and
Palice, Fire and Crime Commissioner's financial and operating performance over the period
covered by the financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissicners
Joint Audit Committee at its meeting on 25 September 2024

“ours faithfully

MaME. ..o

Position..........oooi

Date. ... ...

Mame. ...

Position ...

Date. ...

Signed on behalf of the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner
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[LETTER TQ BE WRITTEN ON CLIENT HEADED PAPER]

Mr Michael Green
Directar

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Landmark, 5t Peter's Sguare,
1 Oford Street

Manchester M1 4PE

[Date] — {TO BE DATED SAME DATE AS DATE OF AUDIT OPINION]

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Chief Constable of Cumbria Constabulary
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Thiz representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements The Chief
Constable of Cumbria Constabulary (the “Chief Constable’) for the year ended 31 March 2024 for the
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Chief Constable financial statements give a true and
fair view in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpese of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Chief Constable’'s financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Autharity Accounting in the United Kingdom
2023424 ("the Code"); jn padicular.the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
therewith.

i We have complied with the requirements of all statutery direcfions affecting the Chief Constable
and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclesed in the financial statements.

il The Chief Constable has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no
nen-compliance with requirements of any regulatery authorities that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

'8 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
contrel to prevent and detect fraud.

L'A Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured
at fair value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include the valuation of the net
pension liability. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the
financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed
in the financial statements. We understand our responsibilities includes identifying and
considering alternative, methods, assumptions or scurce data that would be equally valid under
the financial reperiing framework, and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the
esfimate used. We are satisfied that the methods, the data and the significant assumptions
used by us in making accounfing estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to
achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with the
Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of
pension scheme assets and liabilities for lAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent
with our knowdedge. We confirm that all sefilements and curtailmenis have been identified and
properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have
been identified and properly accounted for.

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b.  none of the assets of the Chief Constable has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged

c. there are ne material prior year charges or credits, ner exceptional or non-recurming
items requiring separate disclosure.

Related parly relationships and fransaclions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the reguirements of International Financial Reporting Standards
and the Code.

All events suhsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International
Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment cr disclosure have been
adjusted or disclosed.

We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures
changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Chief Constable’s financial
statements have been amended for these missiatements, misclassifications and disclosure
changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings
Report and attached schedule. We have not adjusted the financial statements for theze
misstatements brought to our attention as they are immaterial to the resulis of the Chief
Constable and its financial position at the year-end. The financial statements are free of
material misstatements, including omissions.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the camrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Chief
Constable’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concem basis and have not
identified any material unceriainties related fo going cencern on the grounds that -

a. the nature of the Chief Constable means that, notwithstanding any intention fo cease
its operations in their current form, it will continue te be appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be
expected to centinue to be delivered by related public autherities and preparing the
financial statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful representation
of the items in the financial statements

b.  the financial reporiing framework permits the entry to prepare its financial statements
on.the hasis of the presumpfiion set out under a) above; and

. the Chief Constable's system of internal control has not identified any evenis or
conditions relevant to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Chief Constable's ability fo continue as a
going concemn need to be made in the financial statements

We have considered whether acceunting transaciions have complied with the requirements of
the Local Government Housing Act 1989 in respect of the Housing Revenue Account ring-
fence.

The Chief Constable has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a
material effect on the Chief Constable’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance.
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Information Provided

Xvii. We have provided you with:

a. access fo all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the Chief Constable’s financial statements such as recerds, decumentation and other

matters:

b. addifional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit;

and

c. access fo persons within the Chief Constable via remote arrangements from whom
you determined it necessary to obfain audit evidence.

*wili. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal confrol of which management is

aware.

pird All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial

statements.

XK We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements

may be matenally misstated as a_resuliof fraud.

P We have disclosed to you all information in relatien te fraud or suspected fraud that we are

aware of and that affects the Chief Constable and involves:
a. managemeant

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

i We have disclosed to you all information in relaficn to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,

regulators or others.

wxili. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected nen-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial

statements.

i We have disclosed to you the identity of the Chief Consfable's related pariies and all the related
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

MKV We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible lifigation and claims whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

HHVI- We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairty reflects the Chief
Constable's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware
of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

woavii. The disclesures within the Marrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Chief
Caonstable's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the Chief

Constable's financial statements.

Approval

The appreval of this letter of representafion was minuied by the Chief Constable’s Joint Audit Committee

at its meeting on 25" September 2024

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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ours faithfully

Mame. ...

Position..............ooooo

Date. ...,

Mame. .. ... ...

Position.._.................

Date. ... ...

Signed on behalf of the Chief Constable

Commercial in confidence
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Independent auditor's report to the Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner for Cumbria

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

Wi have sudited the financizl statements of the Police. Fire and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria (the
‘Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner') and its subsidiary the Chief Constable {the “group’) for the year
ended 31 hMarch 2024, which comprize the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the
Movermnent in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the
fimancial statements, including & summary of significant accounting policies, and include the pofice
pension fund financizl statements comprising the Police Officer Pension Fund Account, Met Assets
Statement and notes to the financial statements. The notes to the financisl ststements include the Motes
to the Accounts, Annex & — Statement of Accounting Policies, Annex B — Technical Annex — Financial
Instruments Disclosures and Annex C - Technical Annex — Pensions Disclosures. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFALASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023024,

In our opinion, the financial statements-

#* give 3 true and fair view of the finamcial position of the group and of the Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner as at 31 March 2024 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Police, Fire
and Crime Commissicner's expenditure and income for the yesar then ended;

# have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFALASAAC Code of Practice on Locsl
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023724, and

#» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014

Basis for opinion

Wi conducted our sudit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK) (154s (UK)) and
applicable law, &= required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) ("the Code of Audit Praciice”) approved
by the Comptroller and Auditor Genersal. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
describad in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.
Wi are independent of the Police, Fire and Crime Commissionear and the group in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant fo our sudit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FR:{Z's Ethical Standeard, and we hawve fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in sccordance with these
reguirements. We believe that the audit evidence we hawve obtained is sufficient and appropriste to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Wie are responsible for concluding on the appropriatensess of the Chief Finance Officer's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtsined, whether 2 matenz!
uncertsinty =xists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Police, Fire and
Crime Commissioner and group’s ability fo continue a= a going concem. f we conclude that a material
uncertsinty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report o the relsted disclosures in the
financizal statements or, if such disclosures are inadequsts, to modify the auditor's opinion. Cur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtsined up to the date of cur report. Howewver, future
events or conditions may cause the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and the group fo cease to
continue as & going concem.

In our evaluation of the Chisf Finance COfficer’s conclusions, and in sccordance with the expectstion set
out within the CIPFALASAAC Code of Practice on Locsl Autharity Accounting in the United Kingdom
202324 that the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and group's financial staterents shall be
prepared on & going concem basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continustion of
services provided by the Paolice, Fire and Crime Commissioner and the group. In doing so we had
regard to the guidance provided in Practice Mote 10 Audit of finencial statements and regularity of public
sector bodies in the United Fingdom [Revised 2022) on the application of 1SA (LK) 570 Going Concemn

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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to public sector entities. Ve assessed the reasonablensss of the basis of preparation used by the
Paolice, Fire and Crime Commissionsr and group and the Paolice, Fire and Crime Commissionsr and
group's discloswres over the going concerm period.

In zuditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Chisf Finance Cfficer's use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparstion of the financial steterents is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed. we have not idenfified any material uncertsinties relsting to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Police, Fire and
Crime Commissioner and the group’s shility to continue a= a gaing concem for & pericd of 2t least
twrehiz months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer with respect to going concem
are described in the relevant sections of this report

Other information

The other information comprises the imformation included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the
financial statements and cur auditor's report therson. The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the
ather information. Our opinion on the financial ststements does not cover the other information and,
except to the exent othernise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing =0, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financisl statemants or our knowledge obtsined in the
audit or othersise appears to be matenally misstated. i we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a meterisl
missiatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is 8 material misstatement of this cther information, we are required to report that
fact

Wi hawe nothing fo report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Praclice published by the MNational Audit Office in April 2020 on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the
Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the reguirements of the CIPFALASAAC Code of
Pracfice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023724 or is misleading or inconsistent
with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not reguired to consider whether the
Annual Governance Staterment addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed
by internal controbs.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our apinion, based on the work undertaken jn the goyrse of the audit of the financial statements, the
ather information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the
financial y=ar for which the financisl statements are prepared is consistent with the financial stetements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

# we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountahility Act
2014 jn fhe sgyrss of, or at the conclusion of the awdit; or

* we make awritten recommendation to the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner under secfion 24 of
the Local Audit and Accountsbility Act 2014 jo the_courss of. or at the conclusion of the audit; or

# we make an application to the court for a declarafion that an item of account is contrary to kew under
Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of. or at the conclusion of the
audit; o
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# we issue an advisory nofice under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountshility Act 2014 {n the,
pourse of or at the conclusion of the sudit; or

» we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountsbility Act
2014, jn toe gours= of. or at the conclusion of the sudit.

W hawe nothing o report in respect of the abowe matters.

Responsibilities of the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Finance Officer

As explsined more fully in the Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts set out on page 28, the
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of
its financial affsirs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of
those affairs. That officer is the Chief Finance Officer. The Chief Finance Cfficer is responsible for the
preparstion of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements. in accordance with
proper practices 2= set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2023/24, for being safisfied that they give a true and fair view. and for such internal
control &= the Chief Finance Cfficer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material missteterment, whether due to fraud or emar.

In preparing the financial statemants, the Chisf Finance Cfficer is responsible for assessing the Police,
Fire and Crimne Commissioner's and the group’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as
applicable, matters relsted to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
thay hawve been informed by the relevant national body of the infention to dissalve the Paolice. Fire and
‘Crime Commissioner and the group without the transfer of its senvices to another public sector entity.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements g5 g whals.
are free from material misstetement, whether dus to freud or error, and to issue an suditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurenee is & high level of assursnce but is not & gusrantee that an
audit conducied in accordance with |5As (LK) will shways detect a material misstatement when it exdsts.

Mizsstatemeants can arise from fraud or emror and are considered matenal if, individuslly or in the
aggregate, they could reasonasbly be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken pp,
thye hasis of these financial statements. Imegularities, including frawd, are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures gre capable of deteciing irmegularities,
including freud, is datailed below.

W obiained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framewuorks that are applicable to the Police,
Fire and Crime Commissioner and the group and determined that the maost significant which are directly
relevant to specific asserfions in the financisl statemeants are those related to the reporting framewarks.
[the CIPFA/LASAALC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24,
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local
Government Act 2003).

In =ddition, we concludad that there are ceriain significant laws and regulstions that may hawe ap effect.
an the determination of the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and those laws and
regulations relafing to [include relevant detsils for your awdit, e.g. health and safety, employee matters,
and data protection).

Wie enquired of menagement and the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner conceming the Paolice, Fire
and Crime Commissionar and group's policies and procedures relating foo
»  the ideniification, evalustion and complisnce with lews and pequlstinns:

* the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

»  the establishment of internal contrals to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

Wiie enquired of menagement, internal sudit and the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner whether they
were aware of any instances of non-comgliance with lsws and regulations or whether they had any
kmowdedge of actual, suspected or slleged fraud.

Wie assessed the susceptibility of the Police. Fire and Crime Commissioner and group's financial
statements to material misstaternent. including how fraud might occur, by evaluafing menagemeant’s
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incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the fimencial statements. This included the evalustion of
the risk of management override of contrals. We determined that the principal nisks were in relation to
journal entries that could be used to manipulate the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's financial
performance for the year, slong with potentizl management bias in determining sccounting estimates for
the valuation of land and buildings and the net pension lisbility. Our audit procedures involved:

»  evaluation of the design effectivenass of controls that management has in place to prevent
and detect fraud,

#  journal entry testing, with a focus on non-routine transactions and journsls falling within
identified risk criteria meluding: post year-end journals, material joumals across the year,
year-end journals, year-end income and expenditure accrusl journals, journals posted by
semior management and off ledger adjustments,

#»  challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting
esfimates in respect of the valuation of land and buildings and the net pension lability, and

#  assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant lzws and regulstions as part of our
procedures on the related financizl statement item.

These gudit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements
were free from fraud or erar. The risk of not detecting & material misstaternent due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irmegularities that result from fraud is
inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from ermror, &= frawd may involve collusion,
deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Alsa, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from events and fransactions reflected in the financial
statements, the le=s likely we would become sware of it

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential frawd risks to all engagement team
mermbers, incuding [2dd details of nisks). We remained alert to any indications of non-compliance with
lzws and regulations. including fraud. throwghout the audit

Our aszessment of the appropristeness of the collective competence and capabilities of the
engagement team included considerstion of the engagement team's.

#»  understanding of, and practical xperence with sudit engagements of a similar nature and
complexity through appropriate training and participation
»  knowledge of the police sector

#*  understanding of the legal and regulstory reqguirements specific fo the Police. Fire and Crime
Commissioner and group including:

o the provisions of the applicable legislation
o guidance issued by CIFFALASAAC and SOLACE
o the applicable statutory provisions.
In a=z2=sing the potential risks of material misststerment, we obtained an understanding of:

# the Police. Fire and Crime Commissioner and group’s operstions, including the nature of its
income and expenditure and ifs services and of its objectives and strategies to understand
the classes of fransactions, account balances, expected financial stetement disclosures and
business risks that may result in risks of material misstaterment.

#  the Police. Fire and Crime Commissioner and group's control environment, including the
policies and procedures implemented by the Police. Fire and Crime Commissioner and
group fo emsure complisnce with the requirements of the financial reporting frameworkc.

A further description of cur responsibiites for the audit of the financial statements is locsted on the
Financial Reporting Council s website at www fre. orng. ubkl'suditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor's report.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — the Police, Fire and
#»  the work necessary to issue our Whaole of Government Accounts [(WEA) Component

. .. , . . .
Crime Cor.nmlssml?er. s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency Assurance statement for the Police, Fire Ejpg and Crime Commissioner for the year ended 31
and effectiveness in its use of resources March 2024; and

#»  ourwork on the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's arrangements for securing economy,

Matter on which we are uired to report by exception — the Police, Fire and Crime y . =
red port by P efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Commissioner's ammangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of

resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice. we are required fo report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been Wi are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial ststements for the year
able to safisfy curselves that the Police, Fire and Crine Commissionar has mada proper arrangemants endad 31 hMarch 2024

for securing econamy, efficiency and effectivenass in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March

2024

Use of cur report
Our work on the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's arangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectivensss in its use of resources i= not yet complete. The outcome of our work will be reported

in our commentary on the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's armangemenis in our Auditor's Annusl

This repart is made solely to the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner, as & body, in accordance with
Part & of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 [and as set out in paragraph 35 of the Statement

Report. If we identify any significant wesknesses in these srangements, these will be reported by of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments

expeption in a further auditor's report. We are satisfied that this work does not have a materisl effect on Limited]. Our sudit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Police, Fire and Crime

our opinion an the financial statements for the year endsd 31 March 2024, Caormmissionar those matters we are required fo state to the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner inoan
suditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent pemitied by lsw, we do not accept or

Respansibilities of the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner. assume responsibility fo amyone other than the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner a5 & body, for our

The Folice, Fira and Crime Commissioner is responsible for putting in place proper armangemeants for audit work, for this repart, or for the opinions we have formed.

securing economy, efficiency and effeciivenass in its use of resources.

Auditor's responsibilities for the review of the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's . y
. Signature: To be signed
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources g

We sre required under Section 20{1)(c) of the Local Audit snd Accountsbility Act 2014 to be satisfied Michael Grean. Key Audit Partner

that the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner has made proper arrangements for securing economy, for and on behalf of Grant Thormton UK LLP. Local Auditor
afficiency and effectiven=ss in its use of resources. We are not required o consider, nor hawve we

considerad, whether all aspects of the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's amangements for

securing ecanormy, efficiency and effectivensss in its use of resources are opersting effectively. Mancheste
nchester

e underiake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance

issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in January 2023, This guidance sets out the Date:  To be dated
amangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper amanpemsnts’. When reporting on these

amangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires suditors to structure their commentary on

amangements under three specified reporting criteria:

«  Financigl sustainabiity: how the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner plans and manages its
resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its samvices:

+  Govemnance: how the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner ensures that it makes informed
decisions and property manages its risks; and

*  Improving economy, efficiency and effectvensss: how the Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it
manages and delivers its senices.

e document our understanding of the amangements the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner has in
place for each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk
assessment and commentary in our Auditor's Annual Report. In undertsking our work, we consider
whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weakneszes in armangemsants.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Delay in
certification of completion of the audit

Ve cannot formally conclude the awdit and issue an audit cerificate for the Police. Fire and Crime
‘Commissioner for Cumbria for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed:
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Independent auditor's report to the Chief Constable of Cumbria
Constabulary

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

Wie have sudited the financisl statements of the Chisf Constable of Cumbria Constabulary (the "Chisf
Constable') for the year ended 31 March 2024, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement and notes to the financial statements, including 8 summary of significant accounting policies,
and include the police pension fund financial ststerments comprising the Police Cificer Pension Fund
Account. Met Assets Statement and notes to the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements include the Notes to the Accounts, Annex A — Statement of Accounting Policies, Annex B -
Technical Annes — Financial Instrurnents and Annes C — Technical Annex — Pension Disclosures. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the
CIPFALASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 202324

In our opinion, the financial statements:

# give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constsble as at 31 March 2024 and of
its expenditure and income for the year then ended;

# have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFALASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authaority Accounting in the United Hingdom 2023/24; and

#» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014

Basis for opinion

Wie conducted our sudit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK) (154= (UK])) and
applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of Audit Praclice”) approved
by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Cur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the sudit of the financial statements’ s=cfion of our report.
Wie are independent of the Chief Constable in accordance with the ethical requirements thst are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRZ's Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We belisve that
the audit evidence we have obtsined is sufficient and sppropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

W2 are responsible for concluding on the appropristeness of the Chief Finance Officer's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether a materisl
uncertsinty exists related fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Chief
Constable's sbility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 3 material uncerisinty exists, we
are required fo draw sttention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
=such disclosures are insdequate, to modify the auditor's opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Chief Constable to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Chief Finance Officer’s conclusions, and in accordance with the expectstion set
out within the CIPFALASAAC Code of Practice on Locsal Authaority Accounting in the United Hingdom
2023124 that the Chief Constable’s financisl ststerments shall be prepared on a going concem basis, we
considerad the inherent risks associsted with the continuation of services provided by the Chief
Caonstable. In doing so we had regard fo the guidance provided in Praciice Mofe 10 Audit of financial
statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2022) on the
application of 154 (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. Ve assessed the reasonsblensss
of the basis of preparation used by the Chief Constable and the Chief Constable’s disclosures owver the
going concern period.
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In suditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Chief Finance Cfficer’s use of the going
concemn basis of accounting in the preparstion of the financial staternents is sppropriste.

Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any material uncertsinties relsting to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Chief Constable’s
ahility to continue as & going concemn for & period of at least twelve maonths from when the financial
statements are suthorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer with respect to going concem
are described in the relevent sections of this report

Otither information

The other information comprises the imformation included in the Stetement of Accounts, other than the
financial statemeants and our suditor's report thareon. Tha Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the
ather infarmation. Cur opinion on the financial staternents does not cover the other information and,
except to the exdent othanwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion therson.

QOur responsibility is to resd the other information and, in doing so, consider wheather the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtzained in the
sudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. i we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a msterial
misstatement in the financial ststements themselves. If, based on the work we hawe parformed, we
concluda that there is 8 material misstatemsant of this other informsation. we are required to report that
fact

W& have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the Mational Audit Cffice in April 2020 an behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required fo consider whether the
Annual Governance Staternent does not comply with the reguirements of the CIPFALASAAC Cods of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023724, or is misleading or inconsistent
with the information of which we are sware from our audit. YWe are nof required to consider whether the
Annual Governance Staternent addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactosily addressad
by imtermal controds.

W& have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

Im our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements, the
ather infarmation published together with the financial stetements in the Statement of Accounts for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial stataments.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

* we issue a report in the public inferest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the coursa of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

# we make a written recommendation to the Chisf Constable under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or st the conclusion of the audit; or

» we make an spplication to the court for & declsration that an item of sccount is contrary to lsw under
Secfion 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of. or at the conclusion of the
sudit; or;

* we issue an advisory notice under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the sudit; or

*» we make an spplication for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.
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Wi hawve mothing to report in respect of the sbowve matters.

Responsibilities of the Chief Constable and the Chief Finance Officer

As explained more fully in the Responsibilities for the Staterment of Accounts set out on page 20, the
Chief Constable is required to rpake smapgenpepts for the proper administration of its financisl affairs
and fo secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the adminisiration of those affairs. That
officer is the Chief Finance Officer. The Chisf Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the
Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements. in accordance with proper practices as
==t out in the CIPFALASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
202324, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Chief
Finance Officer defermines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from migtenzl misstatement, whether due to freud or ermmor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chisf Finance Officer is responsible for assessing the Chisf
‘Constable's ability to continue as & going concern, disdlosing, as applicable, matters related fo going
concemn and using the going concem basis of accounting wnless they have been informed by the
relevant national body of the intention to disschve the Chief Constable without the transfer of its services
to another public sector entity.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements.

‘Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable asswrance about whether the financial statements as g whols
are free from material misstaterment, whether dus to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonsble assurance is a high level of assurance but is not & guarantee that an
audit conducted im sccordance with 1SAs {LIK) will shways detect a material misstatement when it exasts.

Misstatements can arise from frawd or error and are considered material if, individuslly or in the
aggregate, they could ressonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements. Imegularities, including fraud, are instancas of non-compliance
with lsws and regulstions. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting imegularities,
including fraud. is detailed below.

We obtsined an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are spplicable to the Chisf
‘Constable and determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific assertions in
the financial statements are those related to the reporting frameworks (the CIPFALASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdorn 2023724, the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Act
2003).

In sddifion, we concluded that there are certain significant lsws and regulations that may hawve an effect
on the determination of the amounts and disclosures in the financial ststements and those laws and
regulations relafing to [include relevant detsils for your audit, e.g. hesalth and safety, employees matters,
and dsta protection].

Wie enguired of management and the Chisef Constable conceming the Chief Constable’s policies and
proceduras relating to:
#  the identification, evaluation and compliance with lsws and regulstions;

# the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

#  the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulstions.
Wie enguired of management, internal audit and the Chief Constable whether they were aware of any

instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any knowledge of actual,
suspected or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Chisf Constable’s financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management's incentives and opporiunities for
manipulstion of the financisl statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of management
owermde of controls. Ve determined that the principal risks were in relation journal entries that could be
used to manipulste the Authority's financisl performance for the year, along with potential management
bias in determining accounting estimates for the net pension lisbility.
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‘Our zudit procedures involed:

#»  evsluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent
and detect fraud,

#  joumnal entry testing, with a focus on non-routine transactions and journals falling within
identified risk criteris including: post yesr-and journals, material joumals across the year,
year-end journals, year-end income and expenditure accrusal journals, journals posted by
senior management and off ledger adjustments,

#» challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant sccounting
estimates in respect of the valustion of land and buildings and the net pension labiity, and

#  assessing the exdent of compliance with the relevant lsws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement item.

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements
were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from emror and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is
inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fravd may imeolve collusion,
deliberste concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also. the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial
statemeants, the less likely we would becomea sware of it

Wie communicated refevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
mermbers, including [=dd detsils of risks]. We remained alert to any indications of non-compliance with
laws and regulations, including fraud, throughout the sudit

‘Our assessment of the appropristensss of the collective competence and capabilities of the
engagement team included considerstion of the engagement team's.

+  understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and
complexity through appropriste treining and participation
»  knowledge of the police secior
+  understanding of the lzgal and regulstory reqguiremants specific to the Chisf Constable
inciuding:
o the provisions of the applicable legislation
o guidance issued by CIPFALASAAC and SOLACE
o the applicable statutory provisions.
Im &=sessing the potential risks of material misstaternent. we obtained an understanding of:

# the Chisf Constable’s operstions, including the nature of its incorne and expenditure and its
services and of its objectives and strategies fo undersiand the classes of fransactions,
account balances, expected financial staternent disclosures and business risks that may
result in risks of material misstatement.

#  the Chief Constable’s control environment. including the policies and procedures
implermented by the Chief Constable to ensure compliance with the requirements of the
financial reporting framework.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financisl Reporting Council's website at weww fro.org ukd/suditorsresponsibilifies. This description forms
part of our auditor's report.

Ll



Commercial in confidence

|. Draft Audit opinion - Chief Constable

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — the Chief Use of our report
? " = _w
Constable’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and This report is made solely to the Chief Constable. as = body, in sccordance with Part 5 of the Local
effectiveness in its use of resources Audit end Accountsbdity Act 2014 [and a= set out in paragraph 25 of the Statement of Responsibilifies of
. . . . Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited). Cur audit work
Matter on which we are required to report by excepfion — the Chief Constable’s arrangements for has been undertaken so that we might state to the Chief Constable those matiers we are required to
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources state to the Chief Constsble in an suditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
Under the Code of Audit Practice. we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been permitied by law, we E!C' not accept or assume TEPUHSibi“f_Y to anyone other than the Chief Constable
able to satisfy curselves that the Chief Consiable has made proper armangements for securing economy, a5 a body, for our sudit work, for this repert, or for the opinions we have formed.
efficiency and effectivensss in its use of resources for the yesr ended 21 March 2024,
Cur work an the Chief Constable’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectivensss in Signature: To be signed
its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will be reported in our commentary on
the Chief Constable's arrangements in cur Auditar's Annual Report. If we identify any significant Michael Green, Key Audit Pariner
weaknesses in these amangements, these will be reported by exception in & further auditor's report. We for and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLF. Local Auditor

are satisfied that this work does not have 8 material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2024.

Manchester
Responsibilities of the Chief Constable

Data: To be dated
The Chief Constable is responsible for puthing in place proper arrangements for securing econonmy,

efficiency and effectiven=ass in its use of resources.

Auditor's responsibilities for the review of the Chief Constable’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

e are required wunder Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied
that the Chief Constable has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider. nor have we considered, whether
gl aspects of the Chief Constable's armangements for securing economy. efficiency and effectivenass in
its use of resources are aperating effectively.

e undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance
isswed by the Comptroller and Auditor General in January 2023, This guidance ssts out the
amangaments that fall within the scope of ‘proper armangements’. VWhen reporting on these
amangaments, the Code of Auwdit Practice requires suditors to structure their commentary on
amangements under thres specified reporting criteria:

#  Financial sustsinsbility: how the Chief Constable plans and manages its resources to ensure i
can continue fo deliver its servicas;

»  Gowermance: how the Chief Constable ensures that it makes informed decisions and propery
manages its risks; and

#*  Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Chief Constable uses informstion
about its costs and performance to improve the way it mansges and delivers its services.

\\ie document our understanding of the arangements the Chief Constable has in place for esch of
these three specified reporting criteria, gatherng sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and
cormmentary inour Auditor's Annueal Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is
evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in amrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Delay in
certification of completion of the audit

e cannat formally conclude the awdit and issue an audit cerificate for the Chief Constable of Cumbria
Constabulary for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit
and Accountshility Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed the work necessary
to issue our Whaole of Government Accounts (VW3A) Component Assurance statement for the Authority
for the year ended 31 March 2024. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect an the
financisl statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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o GrantThornton

The Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and Chief
Constable of Cumbria Constabulary

Carleton Hall

Penrith

CA10 2AU

12 September 2024

Dear Mr Allen and Mr Carden

The original expectation under the approach to Value For Money (VFM) amangements work set out in
the 2020 Code of Audit Practice was that auditors would follow an annual cycle of work, with more timely
reporting on VFM arrangements, including issuing their commentary on VFM arrangements for local
govemment by 30 September each year at the latest. Unfortunately, due to the on-going challenges

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Landmark

5t Peter's Square

1 Oxford Street
Manchester

M1 4FPB

T +44 (0)161 953 6382

impacting on the local audit market, including the need to meet regulatory and other professional

requirements, we have been unable to complete our work as quickly as would normally be expected.

As a result, we have therefore not yet issued our Auditor's Annual Report, including our commentary on
amrangements to secure value for money. We now expect to publish our report no later than 28 February

2025.

For the purposes of compliance with the 2020 Code, this letter constitutes the required audit letter

explaining the reasons for delay.

Yours faithfully

Michael Green

Director
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